
Crazy 1461 

Chapter 1461: Grading 

A few hours later, in a certain tartein border Army. 

As the yelmaz police station had been completely destroyed by the terrorists, commander Anna decided 

to bring the criminal, ekundsay AFU, and the other terrorists to the military base for interrogation. 

For safety’s sake, she had also transferred a few of the search teams on the Tautz Highlands back to the 

base to prevent another attack. 

Such a large-scale attack made yelmaz, which was already not very stable, even more anxious. The 

military had already deployed their forces to enforce martial law and investigate the terrorists. 

Due to the heavy casualties in the attack, the hospital in yelmaz was no longer enough. Some of the 

more seriously injured were either transported to other cities in tarstan by plane or sent to the 

International Red Cross to be dealt with … 

At that very moment, a white-haired military doctor was in a military tent at the base, checking on Zhao 

Yu’s condition. 

“I can’t hear you, I still can’t hear you!” Facing the doctor’s question, Zhao Yu kept shaking his head, 

looking very helpless. 

He didn’t expect that the heavy machine gun would have such a great impact on him. After such a long 

time, his hearing had not improved. Instead, it had gotten worse. He could almost not hear anything! 

Seeing Zhao Yu wave his hand, the doctor first made a gesture to comfort Zhao Yu, then talked to the 

officers next to him. After making a simple record, he left the tent. 

Other than his ear, Zhao Yu had suffered no other injuries. He had only lost a tooth. Therefore, he did 

not need to receive any other treatment. 

After the doctor left, there were only a few armed guards left in the tent, as well as two officers who 

could speak Chinese. 

The two officers had been sent by Anna to take care of Zhao Yu. In addition to helping Zhao Yu with his 

treatment, they were also in charge of asking Zhao Yu questions. 

However, as Zhao Yu’s ears were severely damaged, they were temporarily unable to communicate 

effectively. So, the two officers discussed for a while and decided to let Zhao Yu rest first, and wait until 

his ears got better. 

Zhao Yu also knew that the terrorists were currently being interrogated, and he could not understand 

the local language, so he could only wait patiently. 

Moreover, he really needed to rest. Even though he did not use the energy booster during this crazy 

pursuit, his physical strength was inevitably seriously exhausted, and he needed to rest. 

So, Zhao Yu patiently lay down on the folding bed in the tent. 



Even when he closed his eyes, he could still feel the world spinning around him, as if he had just 

returned from outer space. The experience of the previous explosion flashed through his mind non-stop 

like a revolving lantern, unable to be appeased for a long time. 

Although Zhao Yu had been through a lot, what happened in yelmaz that day still made him feel uneasy. 

Fortunately, he had the system’s device to protect himself. Otherwise, he might not even be able to 

survive today, let alone chase after the terrorists! 

Tsk tsk … 

Every time he thought of this, Zhao Yu’s heart was filled with contradictions. 

He did not know if it was because of the system that he had experienced such a dangerous adventure. 

Or was it because he was destined to experience such a dangerous adventure, so he had the adventure 

System? 

As soon as he thought of the system, he remembered the mutated kun Gen Li hexagram that he had 

opened before. If it looked at it now, this hexagram could even be compared to the big kun kun 

hexagram! 

There were explosions, flying cars, and heavy machine guns. This was similar to what he had 

experienced on the island of wondrous traces. 

However, when he recalled the hexagram, Zhao Yu suddenly felt a sense of relief. 

The “kun” hexagram represented a major event, the “Gen” hexagram represented the case, and the “li” 

hexagram represented friends. It either referred to Lu Kaixuan, Anna, or the missing exploration 

members. 

Hence, Zhao Yu was almost certain that, with the arrest of ekundsay, the exploration team case would 

soon have a conclusion! 

This banner organization was likely to be the culprit behind the disappearance of the exploration team! 

Eh? Oh, right … 

Thinking about the hexagram, Zhao Yu suddenly remembered his system device. He vaguely 

remembered that he had gotten a few devices that were related to sound. 

If he had a device like an invisible hearing aid, could it temporarily alleviate his hearing loss? 

Eh? 

Just as Zhao Yu opened the system, he suddenly saw that the system was flashing. The side adventure 

had ended. 

Eh? 

Only then did he remember that he had been fiddling with his ears all this time and had not noticed that 

the side adventure had ended. 

Waa … 



Zhao Yu quickly opened the system’s hexagram area and was shocked by the results. The hexagram 

showed 690%, which was quite a high completion rate! 

This … 

The surprise came too suddenly. Zhao Yu quickly checked the completion notification. In addition to the 

high completion rate, he also received thirty devices of various levels, as well as more than four 

thousand points! 

4000 points! 

This … Didn’t this mean … 

Zhao Yu quickly looked at the points column on the upper right corner and saw that his total points were 

10432 points, which had exceeded the 10000-point upgrade limit. 

His points bar was flashing, reminding him that he could upgrade the system again! 

That’s great! 

Zhao Yu had been waiting for this moment for a long time. He thought that he had spent too many 

points on this side adventure, and that he would miss the chance to upgrade again! 

Now that he saw that he had accumulated enough points, he was naturally overjoyed. He hurriedly put 

down the device to check and was the first to click the upgrade button to upgrade the system. 

What was unexpected was that the previous upgrades usually did not take a long time. The upgrade 

could be completed in a few seconds. 

But this time, the upgrade took much longer than before. Zhao Yu waited for more than ten minutes 

before the system announced that the upgrade was a success. 

As the system interface was restarted, Zhao Yu was surprised to find that the entire system interface 

had been refreshed. Not only was it more exquisite, but the text and decorations on the screen were 

also more three-dimensional. 

What made his eyes light up even more was that the miracle Adventure Mode that had disappeared for 

a long time had actually reappeared! 

The main interface was still the same as before. The largest area in the middle was where the hexagram 

was opened and the hexagram was displayed. The upper right corner showed the points, the lower right 

corner showed the props, and the lower left corner showed the history. The dungeon mode in the upper 

right corner had actually been relit. 

Zhao Yu couldn’t wait to open it. He was surprised to see that the side adventure had changed. There 

were ten buttons in total, written with the Arabic numbers 1 to 10. 

Zhao Yu pressed the button with the number ” 1,” and a text prompt immediately popped up on the 

button.”Do I need to spend 1000 adventure points to open a level 1 adventure?” 

Eh? 



A Level-1 adventure? 

What did that mean? 

Zhao Yu didn’t quite understand. Since when were there different levels of side adventures? 

He tried to click on other buttons and found that Level 2 required 2000 points, Level 3 required 3000 

points, and so on. It would take 10000 points to reach level 10. 

Oh … 

Zhao Yu finally realized that if he wanted to play the side quest, he would need to spend a certain 

amount of points! The higher the level of the side adventure, the more points would be required! 

This was … Interesting … 

Chapter 1462: endless surprises 

After seeing the new side quest, Zhao Yu couldn’t help but feel a little excited. He couldn’t help but think 

of all the side quest experiences he had in the past. 

Although the side adventure might not necessarily be related to the main plot, it still provided him with 

more choices. 

Furthermore, if he were to experience the system freezing again, or if he had nothing to do, he would 

have another source of entertainment. He could try to open an instance dungeon. 

There were a total of 10 levels to the side quest. Zhao Yu could guess that the higher the level, the more 

powerful it would be. 

Take a level 10 side adventure as an example. If he spent 10000 points to open a side adventure, he 

would at least get more than 10000 points after completing the mission, right? 

But … 

Zhao Yu looked at his pathetic 432 points and gave up on the idea of opening a side quest. He didn’t 

even have enough points to open a level one side quest. 

He looked at his points bar and saw that there were some changes to his points bar after the upgrade. It 

showed 432/100000, which meant that he would need to accumulate 100000 points for the next 

upgrade. 

That was 100000 points! 

Zhao Yu was speechless. It had taken him half a year to save up ten thousand points. With one hundred 

thousand points, wouldn’t his children be able to play soy sauce? 

Moreover, points weren’t something that could be accumulated just because he wanted to. In some 

dangerous situations, spending a few thousand points was like playing around. How could it be that easy 

to accumulate? 

But … Zhao Yu recalled today’s situation. A completion rate of more than 600% had been exchanged for 

more than 4000 points, which seemed quite a lot! 



He wondered if there would be any changes to the way he obtained points after he returned from the 

side quest. Would it be easier? 

Then, Zhao Yu checked his points bar again. This time, he made two new discoveries. 

First, he saw a red circle at the front of the points column, and the Arabic number ” 5″ was written in the 

red circle. He had never seen these words before. 

After thinking about it for a while, Zhao Yu felt that this ” 5″ was very likely to represent the current 

version of the system. He roughly recalled that including today, the system had upgraded four times. 

If the original version was level one, then after this upgrade, it would be level five! 

He really didn’t know to what extent the system would continue to evolve in the future. In the future, 

would there be more powerful functions? 

The second discovery on the points bar was that when Zhao Yu clicked on it, the level two interface 

popped up. This was something that had never happened before. 

When Zhao Yu saw the new interface, he was excited again. 

Unexpectedly, on the points bar’s grading interface, there were also ten buttons. However, the numbers 

on the button were not just Arabic. They were 100%, 200%, 300%, and so on, up to 1000%. 

Zhao Yu opened the first one, and a prompt immediately popped up on the interface.”This function will 

be activated within 10 minutes of opening a hexagram. It is detected that you have not opened a 

hexagram yet.” 

Oh? 

You can’t use it without a hexagram? 

Suddenly, Zhao Yu’s curiosity was piqued. Isn’t it just opening a hexagram? then I’ll open one! 

Zhao Yu immediately returned to the main interface and opened a hexagram without hesitation. 

This time, he opened a “Zhen-kan” hexagram. “Zhen” represented status, and “kan” represented 

women. Although Zhao Yu didn’t know who the woman could be, from the Zhen hexagram, he could tell 

that the hexagram was quite normal. 

Every time a case was closed, the Zhen hexagram would appear, and his status would rise. 

As there was no “Gen” hexagram, which represented the case, Zhao Yu felt a little relieved that the case 

of the missing exploration team was likely to have been solved! 

Well, regardless of the hexagram poem, Zhao Yu re-opened the second level interface of the points bar 

and pressed the first button marked with 100%. 

A different notification immediately popped up from the system.” 15 points, odds 1.2 …” 

Ah? 

Bet? 



Odds? 

Zhao Yu frowned. After reading the entire prompt, he finally understood what the functions of these 

buttons were! 

He did not expect this to be a betting area! Every time he opened a hexagram, Zhao Yu could use the 

betting buttons to bet on his miracle adventure completion rate. 

For example, Zhao Yu could bet 15 points on the 100% completion rate. If the completion rate exceeded 

100%, he would get 1.2 times the reward, which was 18 points. 

After deducting the 15 points he had bet, he could earn a net profit of 3 points. 

What the … 

This time, Zhao Yu was really stunned by the miracle system’s awesomeness. He thought to 

himself,”system bro, you really know how to play!” 

Not only did he complete the strange encounter mission, but he could also place a bet. 

Thinking of this, Zhao Yu pressed the 200% button again. He saw that the betting points here were 160 

points, and the odds were 1.8. Looking back, 300% of the betting points was 380 points, and the odds 

were 3.2 … 

Out of curiosity, Zhao Yu clicked on the 1000% button. As a result, the betting points displayed on it 

were 5213 points, and the odds were a shocking 3172.6 … 

Waa! 

Zhao Yu was speechless. If he were to get hit by this, then wouldn’t his accumulated points be an 

astronomical figure? 

But … 

He pondered for a while and finally understood the meaning behind it. If he had gotten a “universe” 

hexagram, he might have a chance to try to get a 1000% completion rate. 

However, now, with just a small “Zhen kan” hexagram, it must be a daydream! 

From this, it could be seen that the bets and odds for each completion rate were based on the hexagram 

that was opened on the day. Different hexagram texts would have different bets and odds. 

Hmm … Interesting, I like it … 

Zhao Yu liked to take risks. After thinking about it for a while, he felt that it wouldn’t be a problem for 

him to get a completion rate of more than 200% for the “Zhen-kan” hexagram. 

Therefore, he immediately spent 160 points and made a 200% bet. 

If the completion rate could really exceed 200% after the end of this adventure, he would get a return of 

288 points. After deducting the cost, he would make a net profit of 180 points. 

However, if it didn’t exceed 200%, then his 160 points would all be for nothing. 



After placing his bet, Zhao Yu checked the new function of the system. 

He then opened the history record area and found that the history record was still in the zero state, so 

he could not see anything for the time being. 

So, he focused his mind and placed all his attention on the most important item, the device bar. 

In the end, when he opened it, there was indeed a huge change in the level 2 interface of his device bar. 

In the past, there were only a variety of devices in the device bar, but now there were three function 

keys on the level 2 interface. 

In order, it was [bet],[item], and [common]. 

This was the first time Zhao Yu had seen this “commonly used” option. He immediately opened it to take 

a look and quickly understood the function of this option through the system prompt. 

It turned out that Zhao Yu only needed to spend one point to move a device from the device bar to the 

commonly used device bar. 

In the future, whenever there was an emergency, Zhao Yu didn’t need to look through the device bar 

one by one. He just needed to think about it, and the device would automatically pop up. 

However, the prerequisite was that he had to move the device to his common device bar. 

Hmm … 

Zhao Yu felt that the system was becoming more and more humane. 

Due to the increasing variety of items, it was indeed very troublesome to find an item he wanted from 

the item bar. 

With this function, he would be able to instantly cast items in the future, which would be fast and 

convenient. 

Alright! 

When he had enough points in the future, he would definitely get some commonly used props to save 

himself some trouble. 

Just like that, after exiting the common device bar, Zhao Yu focused his gaze on the function called 

“betting”. 

In fact, after seeing the name, he could almost guess what it meant. However, when he opened the 

function area, he was shocked by what appeared inside … 

Chapter 1463: Is there a promotion? 

Zhao Yu remembered that, after an upgrade, the system had a function similar to “bet.” 

The so-called bet selection was similar to the previous bet of points, but the bet had been changed to an 

item. 



Every time he opened a hexagram, Zhao Yu could use his points to bet on a device that he liked. If the 

completion rate of the side adventure could meet the corresponding requirements, he would get the 

corresponding device. 

However, Zhao Yu had never used this function before, because it was of little value to him at that time. 

He didn’t need to bet on normal tools, and he couldn’t afford to bet on good tools. 

Take the invisible aircraft as an example. He had to spend more than 2000 points to bet on one aircraft, 

and he had to ensure that the completion rate was above 300%. 

The price and completion rate were difficult to achieve for Zhao Yu at the time. Hence, Zhao Yu had 

never used it before. 

Later, for some unknown reason, along with a certain system upgrade, this function disappeared for a 

brief moment. 

Zhao Yu thought that the system might have realized that this function was a bit flashy, so it uninstalled 

it. 

However, he did not expect that the system would once again add such a function after this upgrade. 

Out of curiosity, Zhao Yu turned on the function, and the next level immediately popped up on the 

interface. 

Unexpectedly, a shelf marked with the names of many items appeared on the interface. 

Zhao Yu glanced at the shelf, and his eyes immediately lit up. 

He had never seen more than half of the items on the shelves before. When he took a closer look at the 

name, his heart couldn’t help but beat wildly. 

“Bullet booster, invisible mallet, blade booster, universal scope …” 

Later on, there were even “invisible taser guns,””invisible grenades,” and “laser reinforcer”! 

Oh my God! 

Zhao Yu covered his mouth and almost bit his finger. 

Could it be … That this was the legendary offensive weapon? 

Now … The system could finally give out offensive weapons? 

Did all the bad * SS ideas I had come up with really come true? 

Why did it feel like … 

He pinched his face hard and felt like he was in a dream. 

In his excitement, he quickly clicked on the bullet booster at the very front. The system immediately 

popped up an explanation: “High-grade device. After use, it can enhance the effect of the bullet, 

increase its penetration and damage … 



“This item requires 2555 points and a completion rate of 375% and above …” 

What the … 

Zhao Yu read the instructions and felt a little upset. 

With the thought of giving it a try, he clicked on the laser booster at the back. The description said: 

“Special device. This device can be used on any tangible object to provide laser support and increase its 

power …” 

“Holy sh * t!” Looking at the introduction, Zhao Yu immediately thought of the all-conquering laser 

sword in Star Wars. 

If an ordinary sword was added with the laser effect, wouldn’t it become an invincible laser sword? This 

couldn’t be stopped … 

“Betting points on this item is 9878 points. Completion rate must be 645% and above …” 

Tsk tsk … 

Seeing the requirements, Zhao Yu couldn’t help but pout. A completion rate of 645% might be possible, 

but wasn’t the amount of points he had to bet a little too much? 

AI! 

It seemed like … Powerful props were not easy to obtain. If he wanted it, he would have to at least 

accumulate a large number of points first. 

For now … Let’s not think about it … 

Zhao Yu left the “betting” area and finally opened the long-awaited device bar. 

After opening it, he saw that the device bar had become more refined. Looking at the many devices, it 

was really a dazzling array of items. 

When he looked at it carefully, he quickly found many bright spots. 

First of all, the color of the items ‘names had changed. Most of the names were blue, but there were a 

few red names. 

Zhao Yu took a closer look and realized that the items with red names were all invisible odor bombs, 

memory clips, hacker commands, invisible sleeping pills, and so on. 

Only then did he remember that the names of the invisible taser guns, invisible grenades, and other 

devices he saw just now were also red. 

Oh … 

He finally understood. It seemed that all offensive, invasive, and destructive items were displayed in red. 

Secondly, Zhao Yu also found that there was a level indicator behind each device, all of which were 

marked with circles and words. 



Looking at the entire device bar, the system had removed the previous titles such as level one, special, 

and exquisite. Basically, all the devices were divided into five new levels, namely low level, middle level, 

high level, special level, and top level. 

For example, the simplest invisible tape and invisible torchlight were low-level devices. 

As for the invisible night vision device, invisible recovery agent, life detector, and the like, they were all 

mid-level devices. 

High-grade devices were the most abundant, such as the commonly used power jamming device, 

universal lock-breaker, invisible accelerator, and so on. 

There were also quite a few special devices, such as aircraft, invisibility cloak, pacemaker, antidote, 

energy booster, and so on. 

As for top-grade tools, there were only a handful of them. 

Zhao Yu looked through all the devices. At the moment, there were only two top-tier devices. One was 

the once-in-a-lifetime emergency evacuation ball, and the other was the invisible spacesuit. 

Looking at this, Zhao Yu couldn’t help but look forward to it. He wondered what kind of top-notch 

devices he would get in the future. 

After checking the level of the device, Zhao Yu had a new discovery. 

That was, after clicking on each device, in addition to the detailed description of the device, the system 

would also pop up two function buttons at the same time. One was the “strengthen” that had been 

there before, and the other was clearly written with the word “buy”! 

As for the strengthening of the device, there was no need to talk about it. After a long period of training, 

Zhao Yu had basically mastered the rules and requirements of strengthening the device. 

However, this was the first time the “purchase” function had appeared. 

Zhao Yu felt that it was really novel. If he could buy this device, why would he need to take the risk to 

bet on it? 

Therefore, he immediately clicked on the purchase function of an invisible bullet proof suit to see how 

much it was worth. 

Although he had received another bulletproof vest after the mission, he was still a seasoned assassin. 

The more of this life-saving artifact the better. Wouldn’t it be great if he could buy it? 

However, when he opened the purchase function, Zhao Yu was so angry that he started cursing! 

However, such a special item actually required 10500 points! 

This was a scam! 

Zhao Yu opened a few devices in a row and found that even the lowest level of the invisible lighter 

required thousands of points to buy. 

Big Boss system! 



I x %$# %$#(51 vulgarities)… 

After scolding the system, Zhao Yu cupped his fists and pleaded with the system,””Boss … Can I get a 

discount? Is there a discount for Platinum Membership? Are there any big promotions during the 

holidays?” 

Chapter 1464: A frustrating coincidence 

The sun set early on the plateau. It was only six in the afternoon, but it was already dark outside the 

tent. 

During this time, the two officers who were in charge of taking care of Zhao Yu brought Zhao Yu some 

food and hot water, but Zhao Yu had no appetite. After such a long time, his hearing had eased a little, 

but the voice he heard was still a little heavy and unclear. 

At that moment, the two officers couldn’t wait any longer. Seeing that Zhao Yu was in good spirits, they 

took out a laptop and tried to communicate by typing. 

However, not long after they started talking, the tent flap was lifted and officer Anna came in with a 

China woman with black hair and yellow skin. 

When he saw the woman behind Anna, Zhao Yu immediately realized who the “kan” hexagram in the 

“Zhen-kan” hexagram was referring to! 

The China woman was none other than the woman he had met before, Qianqian Li Jing! 

At first, Zhao Yu had thought that Li Jing was just an ordinary team leader in the Secret Service. 

However, after talking to Lu Kaixuan, he found out that her rank was much higher than the team leader 

‘s. 

“Zhao Yu, how are you feeling?” 

Li Jing immediately greeted Zhao Yu when she saw him. However, even though her voice was not soft, 

Zhao Yu could not hear her clearly. 

Seeing Li Jing’s arrival, Zhao Yu felt a little worried. He asked,””Captain li, how’s chief Lu?” 

When she heard Zhao Yu mention Lu Kaixuan, Li Jing quickly made a consoling gesture and said 

something. 

Zhao Yu felt awkward, so he used a lip-reading device to understand what she meant. 

It turned out that even though Lu Kaixuan was seriously injured, his life was not in danger. He was 

currently receiving treatment at the local Red Cross organization. 

Oh … 

Knowing that Lu Kaixuan was still alive, Zhao Yu finally felt relieved. 

“I’m very sorry, I haven’t had the chance to say thank you!” Officer Anna looked at Zhao Yu 

apologetically and said,”if it wasn’t for the help of the China detective today, I’m afraid I would have 

seen God by now! 



“In the end, it was the mistake of our Intelligence Department that led to this attack. I’m so ashamed!” 

“It happened so suddenly, don’t blame yourself,” Zhao Yu said, waving his hand. 

“Luckily …” Anna looked at Li Jing, then at Zhao Yu.”Zhao Yu managed to catch Saif all by himself. If he 

had escaped back to vakreya, I don’t know how the government would explain this to the people and 

the victims ‘families …” 

“Why … Are your ears better?” Li Jing was observant and immediately asked. 

“Just barely!” Zhao Yu pointed to his ear and made a helpless expression. 

“Ever since we parted in Feng ping, you’re still so brave and desperate, treating death like it’s nothing!” 

Li Jing smiled and said,”I heard that since then, you’ve been involved in many big cases! Now, we can be 

considered as half colleagues!” 

Li Jing reached out her hand naturally and shook Zhao Yu’s hand. 

“Oh … That’s right!” “Captain Xiao hang’s arm … It should be fine now, right?” Zhao Yu asked Li Jing, 

suddenly recalling something. 

Zhao Yu knew that Li Jing and Xiao hang were a couple, so there was nothing wrong with her greeting. 

However, when she heard Xiao hang’s name, Li Jing’s face turned serious and she said unhappily,”I don’t 

know anything about his situation. You should ask him yourself!” 

“Mm …” Zhao Yu was speechless, and the atmosphere was a little awkward. 

“This is simply a miracle. He’s brave and desperate, and he’s ready to die!” Anna did not seem to be 

embarrassed, but still praised Zhao Yu with admiration.”I’ve interrogated those terrorists! 

“You’re practically a Superman, you even dared to jump off a train! I thought that such a difficult move 

could only be seen in Hollywood movies!” 

“Hehehe … You’re welcome, you’re welcome …” Zhao Yu cupped his fists and said in a serious 

tone,”continue, continue …” 

“Mm …” Zhao Yu’s shamelessness made Anna feel at a loss. He was stunned for a long time, but he still 

had an evil smile on his face … 

“Okay, okay …” Li Jing finally got to the point.”I think we should talk about serious business!” 

“Yes, that’s right!” Zhao Yu then remembered that he had something important to ask, so he urged 

her,”hurry up and tell me, how’s the interrogation going? Is there any news from the exploration team?” 

When Zhao Yu asked this, he immediately realized that Li Jing and Anna’s faces had turned grave. 

No way? 

Zhao Yu had a bad feeling and prayed in his heart that he would not hear the worst news. 

“Detective Zhao,” Anna said with a frown,”we have basically investigated the terrorist attack and Saif’s 

case! 



“We interrogated all of the surviving suspects, and their statements were completely the same. They 

should … Should … Be true and effective!” 

“Then don’t keep us in suspense!” Zhao Yu was anxious.”Hurry up and tell me the results!” 

“Well …” Anna sighed and said with an embarrassed expression,”this time, Saif took the risk to come to 

yelmaz for only one purpose, and that is to negotiate an arms deal with the European firearms!” 

“Ah? An arms dealer?” Zhao Yu frowned.”Why is there an arms dealer?” 

“Listen to me,” Anna continued,”our tartein election is coming up, and there are undercurrents in vaklia. 

All the factions want to take the opportunity to expand their strength! 

“Saif, who just came to power, hopes to strengthen the power of the banner organization and occupy a 

place in vaklia. 

“So, he asked someone to contact an arms dealer in Eastern Europe, wanting to buy a batch of arms.” 

Anna said,”but the arms dealer was worried about the danger in vakreya, so he decided to meet up with 

Saif in yelmaz to discuss their arms deal! 

“Unfortunately,” Anna spread out her hands and said helplessly,”due to the mysterious disappearance 

of the exploration team, yelmaz is on full alert. Our border guards caught Saif as a suspect, which 

completely disrupted their plan!” 

“Ah? It’s actually … Like this?” Zhao Yu was shocked.”So, in order to avoid any more trouble, the 

terrorists quickly planned this attack to save saiafu?” 

“Right!” Anna nodded.”That’s why all the events planned by the banner organization have nothing to do 

with the China exploration team! We’ve interrogated all of them, and they all said that they’ve never 

heard of any exploration team! 

“It has nothing to do with them …” 

“It can’t be?” Zhao Yu angrily slammed the table, feeling that his previous life in the flying car had all 

been in vain. 

“This is also why the higher-ups sent me here,” Li Jing said with a serious expression.”Considering 

Captain Lu’s injury, from now on, I will take over his work!” 

“Zhao Yu,” Li Jing said anxiously,”time waits for no man. The longer we delay, the smaller the chance of 

finding the missing people! 

“So, we must …” 

Before Li Jing could finish her sentence, Zhao Yu suddenly shouted,”motherf * cker!” 

“Hmm…This?” Li Jing and Anna were shocked, not knowing why Zhao Yu had such a big reaction. 

“Oh … I’m sorry, I’m sorry,” Zhao Yu realized that he had lost his composure and quickly explained,”I’m 

not scolding you, I’m just cheering myself on!” Cheering! Good luck, hehe …” 

Zhao Yu smiled apologetically, but he was still angry in his heart. 



It turned out that the person he was cursing at was not anyone else but the system. 

He thought that since the case of the missing exploration team had not been closed yet, he should at 

least get a “Gen” hexagram today, right? But what did you mean by giving me a “Zhen Li” hexagram? 

Could it be that, just like the devil case-the disappearance of the exploration team would lead them to 

another awkward and hopeless situation that they could not investigate? 

Chapter 1465: increasing points 

“I need to clarify that tarstein and vakria are of the same bloodline. They used to be one country.” In the 

tent, Anna was carefully explaining,”especially yelmaz. It was only after the end of the Cold War in the 

last century that it was under the jurisdiction of us, tartein! 

“There’s a Chinese saying that goes,’when the Lotus is broken, the silk will remain.’ Yelmaz and vakries 

have such a relationship, so …” Anna said helplessly.”In this attack, we found more than one spy! 

“They provided Saif and the others with intelligence, accommodation, weapons, and equipment. Even 

our military personnel were involved in this. So … 

“We’re really ashamed of what happened, but there’s nothing we can do! Anna shrugged.”Even in the 

Senate, there are inevitably people from vakolian …” 

“What about the arms dealers?” Li Jing asked. 

“He’s already gone!” Anna said,”saiafu was arrested before they agreed to meet. When we investigated 

according to the information, we didn’t know where he was! 

“We got a few names from Saif, but I’m afraid they’re all fake names …” 

“You’ve already made many mistakes!” Li Jing said rudely,”but I hope that you can at least make up for 

it! Capture this arms dealer as soon as possible. He’s in your territory and doesn’t want to set foot in 

vaklia, so he shouldn’t be able to escape so easily!” 

“Oh … I understand! I understand!” Anna replied with an embarrassed expression,”we’ve already done 

our best to capture them!” 

“Captain li, why …” Zhao Yu frowned.”You don’t think that the exploration team’s disappearance is 

related to this arms dealer, do you?” 

“You’re a super detective. You know we can’t rule out any possibility!” “I’ve been working in the Foreign 

Affairs Office for so many years, but this is the first time I’ve encountered a group of missing people,”Li 

Jing said. 

“According to international experience, 48 hours have already passed. If there really was an illegal 

organization that kidnapped them, they should have released the news long ago! 

“Therefore, we have to consider every possibility. Even if there is only a one-in-a-thousand chance, we 

must try our best to fight for it!” 

“Mm … You’re right, you’re right!” Zhao Yu nodded, but his brain was quickly thinking about whether 

there were any other possibilities. 



“Alright, I’m done!” “Hurry up and settle the work at hand,” Li Jing said sternly to Anna.”From tomorrow 

onwards, you must put the exploration team’s disappearance as the top priority and continue the 

investigation!” 

“Good! I understand!” Anna nodded her head vigorously.”We will definitely do our best! If you have any 

other requests, you can just tell me directly …” 

Then, Anna tactfully left with her men, leaving only Li Jing and Zhao Yu in the room. 

“Here …” Li Jing handed Zhao Yu a phone.”I got it back for you!” 

Zhao Yu took a look and saw that it was the phone that he had lost. 

The phone had a GPS function, so it wasn’t surprising that it was picked up. However, he didn’t expect 

that it wasn’t ah na and the others who returned the phone. 

“It’s not that I don’t believe in their attitude, but I don’t believe in their ability!” Li Jing’s expression was 

still serious as she told Zhao Yu,”just like what happened today, the people here often see people lose 

their lives, so they don’t care as much about human lives. 

“Zhao Yu,” Li Jing said.”I’ve been collecting information in tashibian these past few days. According to 

my latest news and my understanding of tarstein, their factional disputes would never touch the 

Chinese! 

“Um … You …” 

As Zhao Yu had been using the lip-reading device, he had to constantly stare at Li Jing’s mouth in order 

to understand what she was saying. This made his behavior seem a little strange. 

Seeing Li Jing’s confusion, he could only point to his ears, which meant that his ears were not working 

well. 

“I understand.” Li Jing nodded.”I’ll try to speak louder!” 

“Speak slowly, just slowly!” Zhao Yu corrected her. 

“Okay,” Li Jing continued.”Everyone knows the relationship between tarstan and our country. Therefore, 

none of the factions would want to offend us! 

“Although the selection is approaching, I believe that none of them will dare to cross the line! “So …” Li 

Jing took out her phone and said to Zhao Yu,”these few days, our focus has been on the major terrorist 

organizations in tarstan. 

“But, according to the information we have so far, there’s also no sign of any movement. It seems … 

That it has nothing to do with them!” 

“Oh … I see!” Zhao Yu couldn’t help but pout.”It seems that Captain Lu Kaixuan isn’t a friend worth being 

true to! 

“To think that I risked my life to save him at the market. If you had told me this information earlier, I 

wouldn’t have taken so many detours!” 



“You can’t blame him for this!” “When you met, our information was incomplete,” Li Jing said.”Even 

now, we can’t be 100% sure that it has nothing to do with factional disputes and terrorist 

organizations!” 

“Well, in that case …” Zhao Yu said.”It seems that we have to change our way of thinking!” 

“Yes.” Li Jing nodded.”I’ve already sent all our special agents to search for information. You don’t have 

to worry about intelligence.” 

“I’ll send you all the information we have so far, as well as the detailed information of those 12 people! 

“You just need to use your detective skills to find suspicious points and clues. 

“Zhao Yu,” Li Jing said frankly,”I believe in your ability. What do you need, how many assistants do you 

need, just let me know, I will arrange it for you! 

“However, if you discover anything, you must remember to inform me immediately. Do not act on your 

own!” Li Jing said,”I know you’re well-versed in both literature and martial arts, but this is tartein, after 

all. There are many things you need to be careful of. This is also … For your own safety!” 

“Alright!” Zhao Yu and Li Jing had been through thick and thin together. He could tell that Li Jing’s words 

were genuine. 

“Then you should rest first. We’ll discuss our investigation ideas tomorrow morning,” Li Jing said.”I’ve 

already called Bian Dong over. If you need anything, just tell him!” 

“Alright,” Zhao Yu nodded,”you rest early too!” 

After sending Li Jing off, Zhao Yu pressed on his ears and felt that his hearing seemed to have recovered 

quite a bit. At this rate, he should be able to communicate normally with others tomorrow after a 

night’s sleep, right? 

Just as Zhao Yu was pressing his ear, he suddenly discovered something new. He found that the points 

displayed on his system interface had changed. 

After he had placed a bet of 160 points, he had 272 points left in his points column. However, it had now 

become more than 400 points. 

Eh? 

Looking at this situation, Zhao Yu couldn’t help but feel surprised. It seemed that the way to obtain 

points had indeed changed, and it had returned to the original way. 

Every day, as long as he came into contact with something related to a miracle, his points would 

increase accordingly, regardless of whether he had a hexagram or not! 

Hmm … 

This was not bad. If things continued to develop this way, he would definitely get more points if he 

encountered another big divination in the future! 



Just as Zhao Yu was thinking about this, the system interface flashed. His “Zhen-kan” hexagram 

adventure for the day had ended! 

No way? 

So fast? 

Zhao Yu couldn’t help but be dumbfounded and worried, because according to his past experiences, the 

earlier the adventure ended, the lower the completion rate. 

But this time, he had made a bet. He didn’t know if he could win. 

Chapter 1466: scouting direction 

“201%”…… 

Looking at the thrilling completion rate, Zhao Yu even thought that the system was deliberately going 

easy on him. 

According to the requirements, he had to achieve a completion rate of more than 200% to win the bet. 

201% was indeed a little lucky … 

However, no matter what, he still won the bet. 

He eagerly opened his points bar and saw that he had indeed received 288 points in return. Other than 

the 160 points he had bet on, he had made a net profit of 128 points. 

Although one hundred and twenty-eight points was nothing, Zhao Yu still felt a little happy. After all, this 

was a good start. When he had more points in the future, he should be able to gain even more. 

If one could judge the situation, the chances of winning were still very high. 

Of course, in addition to the 288 points that he had recovered, Zhao Yu had also received an additional 

reward, which was more than 400 points, due to the completion of the strange encounter mission. 

Including his previous points and his recent increase, his total points had already broken through the 

1000 mark, becoming 1178 points. 

Hmm … 

Zhao Yu nodded with satisfaction. He felt that at this rate, it wouldn’t be long before he accumulated a 

hundred thousand points. 

Putting down his points, Zhao Yu looked at the three devices that he had received this time. He thought 

that, with such a low completion rate, he wouldn’t get any good devices. 

However, after he opened it, he was surprised to find that … Out of the three items, two of them were 

red in color! 

One was called the invisible scalpel, and the other was called the invisible itchiness. 

The function introduction said that the invisible blade opener could sharpen weapons such as swords 

and sabers, making them sharper! 



The invisible itchy device could cause people to itch to different degrees. 

Waa … 

“Interesting!” Zhao Yu thought to himself,”offensive weapons are really different!” Take this itchy device 

as an example. Just hearing the name, Zhao Yu’s mind could think of dozens of ways to use it in an 

indecent way … 

Both items were intermediate items, but they were normal offensive items. It seemed that after the 

system upgrade, he would be able to get more offensive devices. This made Zhao Yu full of expectations 

for the future. 

In addition to the two offensive weapons, Zhao Yu had also received a device called the invisible 

climbing rope, which could help him climb up and down the mountain. It was also a very good tool for 

acting tough. 

Just like that, in the following period of time, Zhao Yu was studying his own system device. 

He first spent some points to move the common items such as the invisible bullet proof suit and 

invisibility cloak to the common items column. 

This way, in the future, if he encountered an emergency, he could use it more quickly, and he would not 

have to search for it in the device bar. 

After that, he used the invisible tooth implant that he had never used on his gums. A prompt popped up 

from the system, saying that the tooth implant would take 30 days to grow back. 

In this way, Zhao Yu was no longer afraid of having his teeth knocked out! 

Finally, after Zhao Yu had fully understood the new system, he finally calmed down and began to look 

through the information Li Jing had sent him, ready to study the case. 

To be honest, Zhao Yu had not expected the exploration team to reach this point. He had thought that 

such a large-scale disappearance would be full of flaws and easy to find. 

But now, it seemed that the case was not simple at all! 

The most important point was that Zhao Yu still couldn’t figure out the purpose of the criminals 

kidnapping the exploration team members. Those people were just ordinary exploration team members. 

Who were they, and why did they kidnap them? 

As twelve people had gone missing at once, and there were very few traces at the scene, Zhao Yu could 

be sure that this was definitely a premeditated kidnapping, and not a single person’s sudden action. 

Then … What was the truth? 

In fact, when he was thinking about this, Zhao Yu had a bad feeling. 

In the end, when he opened a new hexagram at midnight, his bad feeling was soon fulfilled. 

The new hexagram was an ordinary Zhen-DUI hexagram. 



This situation was very similar to the demon-hunting in beiqian. The more critical the moment was, the 

less the system could open the “Gen” hexagram that represented the case. 

Is there really no way to solve the case of the missing exploration team? 

Or … Had there been a major deviation in the direction of his investigation? Did I miss an important 

clue? 

Tsk tsk … 

Without a doubt, the terrible hexagram made Zhao Yu feel a little down. 

However, Zhao Yu was a veteran in the five major pending cases, so this kind of difficulty aroused his 

competitive spirit. 

So, Zhao Yu immediately turned on his phone and looked through the information Li Jing had given him 

from beginning to end. 

…… 

The next morning, after Li Jing, Anna, and Zhao Yu met, they had a discussion that lasted for hours. 

In the end, they reached an agreement. Li Jing would continue her intelligence gathering work. Anna 

directed the local forces to expand the search area and continue to search for the whereabouts of the 

exploration team. As for Zhao Yu, he returned to the scene of the accident to look for any suspicious 

clues. 

Just like that, after some slight adjustments, Zhao Yu and Bian Dong returned to the base of the 

exploration team under the escort of the local police. 

In the end, just as they arrived at the base, Zhao Yu received a text message from the bank. For solving 

the White bones case, he had received a cash reward of fifty thousand Yuan. 

Fine! 

Needless to say, this 50000 Yuan was definitely the corresponding “DUI” hexagram today. 

As Zhao Yu had been busy studying the case the previous night, he had forgotten to bet his miracle 

adventure points. From the looks of it, today’s completion rate would definitely not be too ideal, so not 

placing a bet was not necessarily a bad thing … 

After returning to the base, Zhao Yu began to organize his investigation ideas. 

As far as the current situation was concerned, he could only investigate from the following directions: 

1. The work log of the exploration team. See if you can find anything from the work log. The day before 

yesterday, because Anna had left in a hurry, the log was still in the base and he had not checked it 

himself. 

2. In addition to the diary, Zhao Yu also planned to understand the work and private life of the 

exploration team members through the relevant personnel to see if there was anything wrong with it. 



3. Survey the scene from all directions again. Due to tartein’s limited forensic knowledge, his 

investigation of the scene was very rough, and it was very likely that some details were overlooked. 

4. The suspect’s means of transportation. As the local surveillance system was not very powerful, the 

local police still did not find a suspicious vehicle. Zhao Yu decided to check the video himself to see if 

there were any new discoveries. 

Just like that, Zhao Yu launched a new round of investigation in these four directions. 

However, he didn’t know whether it was God’s will or the system’s mischief, but seven days passed in a 

row. Although Zhao Yu got a hexagram every day, he had accumulated quite a lot of adventure points 

every day. 

However, in these seven days, there was no progress in the case. He didn’t even get a “Gen” hexagram 

once … 

Chapter 1467: the most annoying clue in history 

Just as Zhao Yu had been worried about before, the case of the missing exploration team seemed to be 

in a dead end, with no clues at all. 

He read the exploration team’s log a few times but did not find anything suspicious. 

There were no torn pages, no traces of editing, and the exploration team’s work had been normal 

without any accidents. 

In order to make sure that there were no problems, Zhao Yu even checked the latest well that the 

exploration team had opened, but there was nothing in the well, which was consistent with the 

exploration log. 

According to Zhao Yu’s understanding, including the two security guards from tarstan, the twelve 

exploration team members were all clean and had good backgrounds. They did not have any bad habits, 

nor had they had any contact with any criminals. 

For the past seven days, Zhao Yu had gone to almost every corner near the base. He had also tried a 

variety of devices, such as a footprint identifier and an invisible tracker, but still found nothing. 

As for the suspicious car, Zhao Yu, Bian Dong, and the others watched all the surveillance videos that 

they could find that day, but they still didn’t find anything suspicious. 

It’s really strange! 

At that moment, Zhao Yu was sitting in a pickup truck near the base. He looked at the setting sun in the 

wilderness in the distance, feeling depressed. 

He was considering whether he should apply to the higher-ups to transfer his team over to help. 

However, he was not optimistic about this proposal. For the past seven days, he had video-called Miao 

Ying, Zeng ke, and the others almost every day to discuss the case with them. 

Although his team members were not by his side, it was no different from working on the spot. 

Everyone gave Zhao Yu a lot of suggestions, but they were all rejected in the end. 



Tsk tsk … 

The light of the setting sun shone on Zhao Yu’s face, but he couldn’t feel any warmth. In another ten 

minutes, darkness would cover the entire wilderness, indicating that another day had passed. 

After such a long time, he had been really worried about the safety of the exploration team. 

Through the investigation, Zhao Yu was able to clearly understand the family situation of every member 

of the exploration team. Their relatives, wives, and children, as well as their entire family, were waiting 

for their safe return. 

However, after investigating for so long, he had not found a single clue. He was really ashamed! 

Before he came, he had promised Division Chief Jiao, but now, sigh … 

While sighing, Zhao Yu suddenly felt a heavy weight in his stomach, and he wanted to relieve himself. 

So, he jumped off the pickup truck, turned to the outside of the truck, unbuckled his belt, and was ready 

to kill them on the spot. 

This place was located in the wilderness, so the exploration team naturally did not need to build any 

toilets. All personal problems were solved in a random place. 

Hua Hua … 

Maybe it was out of habit, Zhao Yu faced the pickup truck and put all the water on the wheels. 

However, as he was putting it down, he suddenly saw a small hole in the ground next to the tire. 

The small hole looked very unremarkable, especially when the sun was about to set. If one did not 

deliberately observe it, one would not notice it at all. 

Men were naturally mischievous, and Zhao Yu was no exception. When he saw the small hole, he 

subconsciously turned the “gun” to the side and poured all his water into the small hole. 

However … 

After Zhao Yu was done with the “water,” he frowned. 

Eh? 

That’s not right. I have quite a lot of water, so why isn’t this small hole … Full? 

This … 

Suddenly, Zhao Yu realized a problem. 

This small hole … What was it for? 

The ground here was made of solid soil and gravel. It was not an easy task to make a small hole in the 

ground. At the very least, tools like hammers and awls were needed! 

Moreover, he had a lot of water, but it didn’t fill this small hole, which meant that the hole was very 

deep! 



Such a deep hole, it seemed even more difficult to dig, right? 

This was … 

Zhao Yu looked around in a hurry. The first thought that popped into his mind was that someone must 

have set up a tent here before, and left it here because of that. 

But … The base of the exploration team was right next to them, who would set up a tent here? Was 

there a need for this? 

And … 

Zhao Yu took two steps away, but soon had new doubts. If they were setting up a tent, it was impossible 

to only make one small hole. So, there must be another small hole within a few meters. 

However, he did not see any other pothole when he carefully examined the ground nearby. 

Eh? 

This was strange. This small hole … What was it used for? 

Hitching the horse? 

No… Shouldn’t they at least find a Leeward place to tie up the horses and animals? 

This was a relatively open and spacious area in the exploration team’s base. Was it possible to tie up the 

animals here and let them drink the Northwest wind? 

What … What other reasons could there be? 

Just as Zhao Yu was thinking, the sun finally set, and the earth fell into darkness. The small hole under 

the car was also quickly covered in shadows. 

However, Zhao Yu was very interested. Even though he didn’t think that the small hole had anything to 

do with the case, he was still curious and wanted to know what the small hole was for. 

Thinking of this, he called Bian Dong through the walkie-talkie, asking him to bring the local technical 

personnel over to check. He turned on his invisible flashlight, crawled on the ground, and looked at it up 

close … 

…… 

Ten minutes later, with the efforts of Bian Dong and a few local police officers, they pushed the pickup 

truck to the side. 

Under the bright light, everyone could see the small hole more clearly. 

“Officer Zhao,” Bian Dong pointed to the local police officers and said,”they said that they don’t know 

what this small hole is for. Should we dig it up and take a look?” 

“No…” Zhao Yu waved his hand, then asked with a frown,”is it because of the sandstorm, so they built 

wooden stakes for the camp?” 



“I don’t think so …” Bian Dong muttered.”There are no sandstorms on the tauzi plateau, but there are 

some strong winds, but …” He pointed to the camp in the distance and said,”the camp is so far away. 

Even if they were to put wooden stakes here, they shouldn’t be here!” 

“Besides, the campsite is full of wooden houses. If we were to tie wooden stakes, they would have to be 

very thick. This hole is obviously a little small!” 

“Right!” Zhao Yu nodded, then said,”it’s windy on the plateau. If such a small hole wasn’t dug recently, it 

would have been covered by dust and gravel, right?” 

“That’s right.” Bian Dong nodded.”That is to say, this small hole was recently made! Did the exploration 

team play golf or set up some sort of equipment to make this hole?” 

“Well, that’s a possibility …” Zhao Yu said.”Well, you guys split up and see if there are any similar small 

holes!” 

“If they are really setting up some kind of equipment, there can’t be only one!” 

“Right!” Bian Dong nodded and hurriedly mobilised the police officers to start searching with their 

flashlights … 

In the end, after searching for only a dozen minutes, someone immediately raised their hand, and that 

person found another hole that was exactly the same as the one that was a dozen meters away … 

Chapter 1468: The mysterious cross 

“This hole was previously covered by a stone!” Bian Dong translated for the discoverer.”If we don’t look 

for it deliberately, it’s not easy to find!” 

“Yes …” Zhao Yu nodded as he measured the distance between the two small holes and their positions. 

After weighing the pros and cons for a few seconds, he raised his arm and said,”keep looking!” 

Thus, everyone began to dig the ground again. 

Although no one knew what these two small holes represented, everyone was looking more and more 

enthusiastically. 

After a while, another police officer raised his hand. He found another small hole a dozen meters away. 

Very quickly, the good news came one after another. Including the one that Zhao Yu had found, the 

group found a total of five identical holes in the open space! 

Zhao Yu quickly found that the positions of the five small holes were not irregular, but there was a 

pattern to it. 

Among them, the one he had found in the middle was surrounded by four small holes on the two sides, 

located at the four corners. If it was connected to the middle, there would be a slanted cross! 

This … 

“Detective Zhao …” Bian Dong also saw the problem, and said to Zhao Yu,”such a long distance, if it is 

used to fix some kind of equipment, then … This equipment must be quite big, right?” 



“But …” Zhao Yu pointed to the small hole under his feet and said,”the hole is so small, which means 

that the thing that needs to be fixed is not heavy, right?” 

“Then …” Bian Dong really couldn’t think of what these small holes were used for. 

“Let’s find another professional to ask!” “I don’t know,” Zhao Yu said.”Is it the usual equipment of the 

exploration team?” 

“Mm …” Bian Dong nodded, and then thought of a possibility.”Do you think it’s a bonfire party held by 

the exploration team to fix the fire rack or something?” 

“I don’t see any traces of fire on the ground!” Zhao Yu shook his head, then ordered,”hurry up and send 

someone to measure the distance between each small hole, and then present it on the map as soon as 

possible! 

“And …” Zhao Yu said again,”send someone to search the camp to see if there are any pile driving tools. 

We have to at least make sure that these small holes were not made by the exploration team. 

“If not, then it might be related to the missing person case!” 

“I understand, I understand!” Bian Dong nodded.”I’ll … I’ll go and arrange it …” 

After that, Bian Dong began to gather his men and did as Zhao Yu had instructed … 

Hmm … 

Zhao Yu looked at the small hole under his feet, his face still full of worry. 

Although the five small holes were novel to him, he still couldn’t associate them with the kidnapping 

case. 

After all, this was the base of the exploration team. It seemed normal for a few small holes to appear on 

the ground, right? 

He seemed to have thought of something. He picked up a thin branch from the ground and stuck it into 

the small hole in the ground, trying to find out the depth of the hole. 

In the end, the branch was too brittle and broke before it even went down. 

There was! 

Zhao Yu suddenly remembered that there was an invisible measuring device in his system, which was 

specially used to measure. After a long period of accumulation, he had accumulated nearly a hundred of 

these low-level props. 

Zhao Yu had been depressed about this. He wasn’t in the construction industry, so he didn’t know what 

the measuring device was for. 

Now, it seemed that it would be a waste not to use it! 

The measuring device was quite easy to use. After Zhao Yu aimed the measuring arrow, the display 

quickly showed the depth of the hole. 



43 centimeters … 

Nearly half a meter … 

Zhao Yu pondered, what could this number represent? 

Eh? 

Just as he was thinking about it, he suddenly discovered a new suspicious situation under the light of his 

invisible flashlight. 

He found that on the ground on one side of the hole, the gravel seemed to have been divided into two 

sides by something, leaving a long and thin trace in the middle … 

Oh … 

Zhao Yu suddenly thought of a noun,”Xuanji rope”! 

If he guessed correctly, it should have been left behind by the friction of the rope on the ground. 

Right! 

Zhao Yu stood in front of the hole, and an image appeared in his mind. 

One of them used a hammer to hammer a sharpened iron rod, and the iron rod was hit into the hard 

ground. 

Then, he tied a rope to the iron bar to secure something in the distance. 

After fixing the rope, he stood at the iron pile to retrieve the rope, which left such a mark on the ground. 

However … Since it had been a long time, the mark was not so obvious anymore … 

From this, it seemed that his previous speculation was correct. The use of the small hole was to fix 

things! 

But … What was it? 

Could this fixed object be related to the disappearance of the exploration team? 

…… 

A few hours later. 

Late at night, Zhao Yu seemed to be possessed. 

It was almost midnight, but he was still sitting in front of the lamp, staring at the sketch on the paper. He 

was still stubbornly analyzing the five small holes that had suddenly been discovered. 

Before this, Bian Dong had already consulted the relevant experts, but the experts were unable to 

determine what the small hole was used to fix. 

The cross … 



Zhao Yu connected the five small holes and drew a crooked and flat cross. He found that the four small 

holes on the outer edge were about the same distance from the middle hole, between seventeen to 

twenty meters. 

If one looked at it separately, the two holes on the left and the hole in the middle could form an 

equilateral triangle. 

Zhao Yu understood that this was the legendary triangular fixation. In this way, the thing that was fixed 

in the center of the triangle would be more stable! 

The five small holes could form two equilateral triangles. 

In other words, the five holes were used to hold two objects of the same size! 

From the looks of it … 

Zhao Yu couldn’t help but feel disappointed. Because no matter how he looked at it, the object that was 

fixed in place looked like a tent! It was very likely that someone had left these five small holes in a 

regular pattern in order to secure the two tents! 

Moreover, only tents were more suitable for such thin iron or wooden stakes. If it was a large machine, 

then the ground would not be left with small holes. 

It seemed like … 

Zhao Yu let out a heavy breath, and an idea formed in his mind. 

Perhaps, the exploration team had once obtained a batch of supplies, and in order to protect them, they 

had set up two tents on the open space of the camp, thus leaving behind those five strange small holes. 

But … Not long before the exploration team’s accident, the supplies were transported away, so the 

exploration team tore down the tents, so … 

Wait a minute … 

Thinking of this, Zhao Yu suddenly had a new idea. 

That’s right! 

He excitedly thought that he had the phones of the exploration team members! If he looked for photos 

related to the camp from his mobile phone, would he be able to confirm the tent’s problem? 

A genius! 

Zhao Yu smacked his forehead and was about to summon up all his energy, so he quickly took out his 

phone to check the photos. 

However, his phone rang first. 

He took it out and saw that it was the alarm clock he had set to remind him that it was midnight and he 

could open a new hexagram. 



For the past few days, as Zhao Yu had no way to solve the case, the side adventures he had opened 

every day ended early, and today was no exception. 

Therefore, when he saw that it was already 12 o’ clock, he did not hesitate to open a new hexagram! 

However, for some unknown reason, when he opened the hexagram, Zhao Yu suddenly felt an electric 

shock, as if he had been struck by lightning. 

The next second, when he looked at the hexagram that he had already opened, his entire body instantly 

froze! 

He saw three big words appear in the middle of the system: “Qian Kun Gen”! 

Chapter 1469: shocking variation of divination 

How did this happen? 

As soon as the shocking hexagram came out, Zhao Yu was suddenly frightened. 

Big brother system, why does it always end up like this? a big heaven and earth hexagram with a 

mutation, what are you trying to do? 

This is tartein, and I’ve already been attacked by a terrorist attack. Haven’t you had enough fun? 

The “Qian Kun” hexagram was already amazing enough, and now there was a mutation. This … Was 

there anything to complain about? Is there still justice? 

In his excitement, Zhao Yu couldn’t help but start to think seriously. 

He felt that since the system had given him such a big hexagram, and the suffix was “Gen,” which 

represented the case, did it mean that the exploration team’s case would have new progress? 

Moreover, from the hexagram, it could be expected that this development was likely related to some 

shocking event … 

Zhao Yu was quick-witted, and he quickly realized that he had only managed to get such a shocking 

hexagram after he had discovered those mysterious small holes! 

In other words, the exploration team’s case was likely to be inseparable from those small holes! 

Therefore, if he wanted to make any progress today, he had to uncover the secret of these five small 

holes … 

Then … Was the problem back to square one? 

What did these five small holes represent? 

Other than the case, Zhao Yu also saw another highlight. Since he had opened a shocking hexagram, did 

it mean that his opportunity to make a fortune had come? 

He opened the betting function and placed his thoughts on the five hundred, six hundred and seven 

hundred percent buttons. 



According to his past experience, it was not difficult to get a 500% completion rate for a big Qian Kun 

hexagram. Therefore, he began to focus on the 600% and 700%. 

He felt that if the Qian Kun hexagram were to be further mutated, and he could get a completion rate of 

more than 700% if he could control it to be 6, it was not impossible! 

But … 

Wasn’t it a bit risky to bet 700%? 

He opened the 700% button and saw that the bet was 850 points, and the odds were 13.6. In other 

words, if the bet was successful, he could earn more than 10000 points. The bet … 

Zhao Yu thought about it seriously, then finally made up his mind. As the saying goes,”you can’t be 

productive if you’re not bold.” It wasn’t like he couldn’t afford to lose 850 points! 

Dry! 

Hence, Zhao Yu immediately spent 850 points and bet on a 700% completion rate. If the completion rate 

was over 700% after the hexagram poem ended, he would be able to make a fortune! 

After placing his bet, Zhao Yu clicked on the other buttons, but they all stopped moving. This meant that 

one could only place one bet and couldn’t place it at the same time. 

Of course, in addition to betting points, Zhao Yu took advantage of this rare opportunity to open the 

betting function of the device and bet on another device. 

The device was also a red offensive device called the black iron universal scope! 

Regarding this device, Zhao Yu had been coveting it for a long time. After using it, it could greatly 

improve his shooting accuracy, and becoming a sharpshooter would no longer be a dream! 

For a long time, shooting had been Zhao Yu’s weakness. Although he had practiced often, it was like a 

natural shackle, and he had never been able to grasp the main points. 

At every critical moment, he would always drop the ball. 

Zhao Yu felt that he really needed this device to improve his shooting skills. So, taking advantage of the 

rare change in the universe, he immediately invested 1050 points and bet on a universal scope. 

Although 1000 points was a little painful, it was much cheaper than the sky-high price of buying an item. 

…… 

It was a shocking divination, and he couldn’t sleep. 

As Zhao Yu closed his eyes, he couldn’t help but think of the earth-shattering heaven and earth change 

hexagram. 

There was a stove burning in the room, but he still felt cold inside as he tossed and turned. 

He really did not know what would happen in the future. 



Thinking back to the big Qian Kun hexagram on wondrous trace Island, it had lasted for more than half a 

month before ending. He wondered how long this change of heaven and earth would last. 

Can I … Handle it? 

Zhao Yu didn’t know how long he had been thinking, but he finally fell asleep. However, in her sleep, she 

couldn’t help but have a bunch of strange dreams … 

Du, du, du … 

Du, du, du … 

At six in the morning, a knock on the door woke Zhao Yu up. 

When he opened the door, he saw that it was his assistant, Bian Dong, who had come in. Behind him, 

there was a local police officer with a beard. 

“Detective Zhao, detective Zhao …” As soon as he entered the door, Bian Dong said impatiently,”this 

police officer is looking for you! Regarding the small holes we found yesterday, he felt that he might 

know what they were used for!” 

“Ah?” Zhao Yu was still in a daze. When he suddenly heard the news, his eyes immediately widened and 

he asked excitedly,”what’s it for? Hurry up and tell me! Hurry up and tell me!” 

“Hot air balloon!” Bian Dong hurriedly pointed to the man and replied,”he said it was used to fix the hot 

air balloon in place!” 

“What?” Zhao Yu was stunned. He pinched his cheeks and said,”I thought about it yesterday. Could it be 

something from the sky, but … A hot air balloon? But …” 

“That’s right!” Bian Dong said,”I did some research last night. In the 1990s, in the Western part of the 

Taus Highlands, which is where we are now, hot air balloons were not only a common means of 

transportation, but also a government-supported sightseeing project. 

“There are many people in this area who are experts in making and driving hot air balloons! However, 

due to the outbreak of the border war, the hot air balloon was rarely seen again! 

“Detective Zhao …” Bian Dong said mysteriously.”If it’s really a hot air balloon, could the exploration 

team members have been kidnapped by kidnappers through a hot air balloon?” 

“I seem to have thought of this, but …” Zhao Yu pointed out of the window and said,”using a hot air 

balloon to kidnap a hostage, then putting the person on the hot air balloon, and then igniting the fuel, 

wouldn’t the balloon fly away? What’s with the pile driving and fixation?” 

“No, it’s not as simple as you think!” Bian Dong hurriedly said,”the take-off of the hot air balloon also 

needs to follow certain rules. Before taking off, they had to check if the balloon was damaged, as well as 

detect the wind direction and fuel equipment. 

“Therefore, pile driving is necessary! Right?” 

Bian Dong asked the bearded man, who immediately spoke a bunch of words in the local language, 

which Zhao Yu couldn’t understand. 



“This colleague’s father was a hot air balloon maker!” Bian Dong explained,”he was very sure that the 

five small holes were made with local iron stake. The iron stake was sharp at one end and welded with a 

rope loop at the other end. 

“The rope is tied to a loop, and the other end is hooked. Before taking off, the hook had to be hooked 

onto the hot air balloon. After the preparation is complete, the pilot will release the hook and let the hot 

air balloon take off!” 

“Oh …” Zhao Yu asked.”The exploration team has twelve people … Can they sit well?” 

Perhaps he understood what Zhao Yu meant, as the bearded police officer immediately gestured with 

two fingers. 

“No problem!” Bian Dong translated,”he has seen the location of the small hole. Two hot air balloons 

are just right! Each plane can carry at least 10 people!” 

“Mm …” Zhao Yu nodded, then said,”six hostages in one hot air balloon, including the kidnappers, is 

indeed just right …” 

“But …” He frowned again.”Isn’t it a little weird to kidnap the exploration team members with a hot air 

balloon? Why did they kidnap her? Where do you want to take her?” 

Chapter 1470: The meaning of a major event 

  

Teno’ clock in the morning, the exploration team’s base. 

Li Jing, who had rushed over after hearing the news, was listening to Zhao Yu and the others “case 

analysis. 

“The hot air balloon can be disassembled!” Bian Dong stood in front of a laptop and pointed to the 

information on the screen.”If the robbers put the hot air balloon parts in the back of the pickup truck 

and covered it with other goods, we wouldn’t be able to see it from the video! 

“This also explains why we haven’t found any suspicious vehicles for such a long time! 

“Our eyes are all focused on the large vehicles that can carry 12 people …” 

“Indeed,” a local police officer who could speak Chinese said.”Twenty years back, hot air balloons were 

the iconic product of our area. Almost everyone of the older generation had sat in hot air balloons!” 

“Hmm …” Li Jing nodded thoughtfully. She then pointed to the map next to her and asked,”I want to ask, 

can hot air balloons be used at night?” What’s the maximum distance it can travel?” 

“Of course, it’s best to fly during the day! However … As long as you are familiar with the environment, 

flying at night is not a problem!” The local police officer replied,”not to mention, the technology is more 

advanced now. With simple turning and infrared equipment, an experienced expert will definitely have 

no problem! 

“As for the flight distance, that’s hard to say! Hot air balloons are mainly affected by the weather. If 

there is enough fuel and the weather is good, you can fly as far as you want!” 



“I think … It shouldn’t be too far, right?” Bian Dong raised an objection.”When I was traveling in Egypt, it 

only took an hour to fly! 

“Also, since hot air balloons are no longer popular, it would be very eye-catching if people saw a hot air 

balloon flying in the sky, right? 

“The hot air balloon is on fire and can be seen at night! The robbers were carrying out a kidnapping, so 

they wouldn’t be so ostentatious, right?” 

“Since they relied on the wind …” Li Jing reacted quickly and immediately asked the main point.”If we 

know the wind direction that day, can we determine where the robbers went?” 

Hearing this, Zhao Yu immediately snapped his fingers at Bian Dong. 

“Yes, detective Zhao had already thought of it,” Bian Dong quickly replied.”I have already contacted the 

local Meteorological Department. On the night of the exploration team’s disappearance, it was a 

northeastern wind. If the hot air balloon was raised, it would definitely fly Southwest!” 

“Southwest?” Li Jing walked quickly to the map and drew three circles in the air.”There are only three 

large towns Southwest of the base, yelmaz, bakeller, and suwuli,” she said.”But these are the areas 

we’ve been investigating. We didn’t find any suspicious traces …” 

“No!” Zhao Yu suddenly said,”Captain li, it can’t be these three cities! Think about it, it’s only a few 

dozen kilometers. Is it necessary to use a hot air balloon? 

“Besides, if the robbers could think of the hot air balloon, it means that they are not stupid! It’s 

impossible for them to hide in these three cities and wait for the police to come and search!” 

“Hmm …” Li Jing thought for a moment, then nodded and asked,”where do you think the hot air balloon 

will go?” 

“That’s not difficult,” Zhao Yu said confidently.”The robbers wanted to use the hot air balloon to go to a 

relatively safe place that we can’t think of! 

“There … I think their target is here!” 

As Zhao Yu’s finger pointed at the map, everyone at the scene was shocked. 

The place that Zhao Yu was pointing at was none other than Death Valley, where he had fought the 

terrorists earlier! 

“The Neya Valley?” The local police officer said in surprise,”that … That’s already within the borders of 

vachery … Isn’t this a little …” 

“We know the wind direction that day, but we also need to know the wind speed!” Zhao Yu 

said,”according to the calculation of the wind speed that day, if the robbers took action at midnight or 1 

o’ clock, they would have had enough time to drive the hot air balloon into the Nelia Valley before 

dawn! 



“Look, this route doesn’t even need to make a turn!” Zhao Yu gestured on the map and said,”from the 

base to the Nelia Valley, they can fly straight without passing by any cities or villages, so they are not 

worried about being seen by others! 

“And when they reached the valley, there was no one there, so they didn’t have to worry!” 

“You mean …” Li Jing’s brows were tightly furrowed.”The real criminal is from valkries?” What is their 

purpose?” 

“Is he … Trying to frame me?” Bian Dong’s expression changed as he clicked his tongue.”They want to 

use the exploration team to stir up internal conflicts in tarstan, or a conflict between tarstan and our 

country? 

“That … That would be troublesome!” 

“No, you’re wrong!” Zhao Yu retorted decisively,”if that’s the case, why go through so much trouble? 

Directly killing the exploration team members in the camp, isn’t that the best way to frame them?” 

“Hmm … Oh …” Bian Dong quickly recovered from his confusion.”That’s right! In that case, he wouldn’t 

have to waste his energy to use hot air balloons to bring her back to vachelia! 

“This is strange. What are they doing?” 

“I don’t care what they’re going to do!” Zhao Yu said,”if they were really taken away by hot air balloons, 

at least … The exploration team members are likely to be alive!” 

“But …” Li Jing pointed at the map again.”The valley is so big. How do we know where they took the 

people?” 

“That’s right. The sakra’s party, the Kashmir sect, and that terrifying banner organization are all 

entrenched on the south bank of the Neya Valley,” Bian Dong said.”The armed forces of tartein can’t set 

foot there at all! Even if we know where the exploration team has been taken, I’m afraid there’s no 

effective way!” 

After Bian Dong finished speaking, the entire place fell silent. 

To the locals, vacheria was synonymous with “danger”. For many years, the two countries had been in 

constant conflict, and the conflict was deep. 

If the exploration team members were really captured and brought to vachery, then this matter would 

be very difficult to solve! 

“Zhao Yu …” Li Jing looked worried. She pulled Zhao Yu to the side and whispered,”we don’t have a base 

in vachery, so I can only ask my superiors for instructions!” Let’s see if there are any other channels that 

can help us find out more information!” 

“Vacheria isn’t a country.” Seeing Li Jing’s expression, Zhao Yu asked,”is it not easy to use diplomatic 

channels?” 

“Right! This mission is indeed very difficult …”Li Jing said awkwardly.” I’ve been an overseas commander 

for so many years, but this is the first time I’ve encountered such a difficult mission. 



“At the very least, we have to be sure that the exploration team must be there before we can apply for 

diplomatic channels! 

“Otherwise … The higher-ups would not rashly negotiate with them!” 

“Hmm…Understood!” Zhao Yu nodded, his heart throbbing. Now, he finally understood what the big 

event represented by the hexagram poem was! 

Such a difficulty level had indeed exceeded everyone’s imagination. 

“Qian Kun Gen!” 

In an instant, this shocking and mutated hexagram flashed through his mind again. A long-lost passion 

slowly rose in his body, and many images flashed through his mind like a revolving lantern. 

Among them, Miao Ying had reminded Zhao Yu not to risk his life. 

There was also the hope in Division Chief Jiao’s eyes before she left. 

Of course, there was also his bet on the 700% completion rate … 

What to do? 

In the face of an earth-shattering change of hexagram, in the face of an unprecedented major event, 

how should he choose? 

 


